ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
March 30, 2007
8:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair

Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Bettye Davis

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Donny O son

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Consi deration: College Affordability
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record.

W TNESS REGQ STER

Sai chi Qoa, Enrollment Oficer

University of Al aska

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avail abl e for questions

Pat Pitney, Director of Budget and Institutional Research
Uni versity of Al aska

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l able for questions

Pete Kelly

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents
Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questions

D ane Barrans, Executive Director

Al aska Comnmi ssi on on Postsecondary Educati on ( ACPE)
Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questions

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE SED COW TTEE -1- March 30, 2007



CHAIR GARY STEVENS called the Senate Special Committee on
Education neeting to order at 8:06:50 AM Present at the call to
order were Senators W/ ken, Davis, Huggins, and Chair Stevens.

CONSI DERATI ON:  COLLEGE AFFORDABI LI TY

CHAI R STEVENS said that the purpose of the neeting was to talk
about ways to bring down the costs of college in Al aska; he said
that the greatest concern is naking the comunity coll ege system
entry as easy and affordable as possible. 1In Al aska, the
community college system has been absorbed into the university
system which is making it hard for people to enter two year
schools. University tuition is low, but community schools are
conparatively pricey.

He referenced a report on national college tuition prices that
shows that Alaska has been graded poorly on college
affordability; there’s no major difference between the prices in
low and higher level college. For the population at |ower or
m ddl e incone |evels, the percentage of incone required to go to
school is huge.

He added that it's inportant to realize that Al aska needs to
catch up with the rest of the country in lowering conmunity
college fees; high prices are unfair to the Al aska public. He
said that he has introduced a bill to separate the University of
Al aska (UA) system from the community college system which
hopefully won't be necessary but nay open the conversation. He
expl ained the history of the community college system in Al aska
and why he wishes to get to a |ower-cost system colleges need
to pay attention to students with financial difficulties.

8:14: 49 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that a |lot of states did poorly on the
report previously referenced.

CHAIR STEVENS said that the report |ooks at the percentage of
income required to fund a cormmunity col | ege educati on.

SENATOR HUGGA NS said that he agreed with the need to |ower
costs, because school needs to be convenient and affordable for
certain students. It's illogical that comunity colleges would
cost the sane as four-year schools.

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 2- March 30, 2007



CHAI R STEVENS referenced a study that shows the inportance of
| ower-cost community coll eges.

8:17:16 AM

SENATOR W LKEN agreed that the issue is inportant, and said he
woul d hope that the UA sees the report. He pointed out that
university tuition in Alaska is low but community colleges are
hi gh, which doesn't conpare well wth other states.

8:19:11 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS referenced a page of the report to remark that
sonme of the nunbers are unclear.

CHAI R STEVENS said that he doesn't know how the report nunbers
are categorized; the commttee should concern itself nore wth
the issue than the nunbers. He commented that some people in his
district find attending out-of-state schools to be cheaper than
living in Al aska and attendi ng school here.

8:21: 33 AM

SAICH OBA, Enrollnent Oficer with the University of Al aska,
said that the UA struggles with this situation as well, and the
issue should be one of affordability nore than price

Nationally, 11 percent of community college funds cone from
local municipalities and so the schools can accordingly |ower
tuition, but in Alaska this isn't the case for the nost part.

He commented that community canpuses are opportunities to serve
people who can't travel, and they're a vital link for people
aspiring to a four-year degree. Mst of the canpuses run at a
high cost nodel; he's aware of the report nmentioned, and the
level of financial support given in nmany states to needy
students is higher than in Al aska.

8:26:17 AM

CHAIR STEVENS said that Alaska's school system was built
differently, not starting with |ocal support, which was perhaps
the wong way to begin.

MR OBAl said that he was wunaware of that dynamic; many

communities with canpuses could be considered to be in financial
difficulty, so that conplicates the problem

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 3- March 30, 2007



CHAI R STEVENS said that over half the students in the UA system
conme from the integrated comrunity schools; it does seem that
sonet hing has been lost in the nelding of the two, as inportant
as it was.

8:28: 44 AM

PAT PITNEY, Director of Budget and Institutional Research for
the UA, said that she's interested in the cost and revenue side
of the matter, and explained that several canpuses base nuch of
their operation on tuition; lowering tuition costs would nean
the noney would have to come from a replacenent source. What's
been lost through the integration has been sone of the identity
of the schools, but the inprovenent of continuing education has
been a great gain. In terns of additional degree offerings, the
associate degrees offerings, which are the min goal of
community col | eges, have increased the nost.

8:31:42 AM

CHAI R STEVENS agreed that there were reasons for consolidation
and asked when the consolidation took place.

M5. PITNEY replied that it was in 1987, when there were 11
separately accredited community colleges in the state. There was
much | ess assistance in terms of support, and going back to the
ol d nodel woul dn't be a good sol ution.

CHAIR STEVENS replied that there were many advantages to the
consolidation including easier transferal of credit, but when
there were two systens the cost of classes was nore readily
identifiable; perhaps this needs to be corrected.

MS. PITNEY said that the differences anong the faculty have been
preserved, and the <cost per «credit 1is differentiated in
community schools. The exact distinction may not be as clear as
in the 4-year schools.

8: 36: 05 AM

CHAI R STEVENS said that the problem is huge and can’t be fixed
in a single day, but across the country school chancellors are
trying to lower costs and we can't continue blam ng the problem
on various issues; we should see if there's a solution to be
f ound.

SENATE SED COW TTEE -4- March 30, 2007



M5. PITNEY said that the UA is looking into the problem now
Communi ty canpuses are a key piece of the UA system over half
of hi gh-demand graduates have taken classes at nore than one UA
school

CHAI R STEVENS said that comunity involvenent is inportant as
wel | .

8:39: 03 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS referenced the tuition study, and said that the
national average for conmunity college costs shows that Al aska
costs are anong the highest; he asked for Ms. Pitney' s coments
on national trends.

M5. PITNEY said that the UA recognizes this differential; Al aska
community college access costs are significantly higher, and UA
canpuses have been told that they could not raise tuition costs
but would have to cut sone conveniences and prograns. The state
needs to provide nore need-based aid, which is currently
insufficient; the university <can't offer enough to neet
everyone’ s needs.

8:42: 21 AM

CHAI R STEVENS said that no state has a particularly good rating
in the previously referenced report.

SENATOR W LKEN comrented that he would be interested in seeing
what the regents are doi ng about the issue.

8:43: 20 AM

PETE KELLY, regent for the University of Alaska, said that there
has been discussion about letting separate canpuses decide their
own tuition rates; the relative affordability of school is nore
i mportant than the actual price. He thanked the conmittee for
di scussing the issue, and said that there's generally not enough
di scussion about the university; the UA is thrilled to see the
| egislature take an interest in the wuniversity besides its
budget. If community colleges decide to becone nore affordable,
it would cost them greatly without a way of replacing the noney
through other neans. He gave an exanple of history of higher
education in the US, and rem nded the commttee that recouping
from adjustnents takes tinme and noney.

8:47:47 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 5- March 30, 2007



MR. OBA said that the differential tuition task force has been
in place since the previous fall, and there's been extensive
di scussion about the nmatter of lowering costs. Sone of the
results of analysis are staggering; enrollnent, for exanple,
woul d have to be increased 50 percent to reach a revenue-neutral
si tuation.

8:49: 42 AM

CHAI R STEVENS said that there shouldn't be any conflict with the
board. The issue of differential is still there though, and
despite reasonable four-year tuition, the two-year tuition has
suf f er ed.

MR. KELLY said that the wuniversity is certainly aware of the
i Ssue.

8:51: 01 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked for the nunber of students remaining in-
state to go to school, and added that nationally 80 percent of
students remain in state.

MR. KELLY replied that the nunber of students remaining in state
is around 54 percent. Only two years ago the 50 percent mark was
reached, at the sane tinme that 50 percent of Al askan graduates
began choosing to go to coll ege.

8:52:41 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the UA Schol ars program has hel ped with
student retention.

MR. KELLY replied that it is a major catalyst, but it's not the
only element. A big difference that is does make is that now
that the smartest kids in the class are going to the UA system
t he other students consider the UA schools as an option as well.

8: 54: 03 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS remarked that sonme schools in other states have
| egacy scholarships, and asked if that would be feasible in
Al aska.

MR. KELLY said that around 90 percent of the UA Schol ars program
graduates tend to stay in Al aska.

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 6- March 30, 2007



8:55:44 AM

M5. PITNEY said that there is a | egacy programin the UA system
any child of an alumus can attend at in-state tuition rates.

SENATOR HUGGE NS remarked that the college affordability study
states that private university faculty have higher salaries, and
asked for the difference in salaries in Al aska school s.

M5. PITNEY said that the UA system serves 93 percent of the
students in the state, so the nunbers of private school staff
and students in Alaska are very | ow

SENATOR HUGA NS said that he had expected that public school
staff would be paid |less than private school staff.

8:58: 02 AM

CHAI R STEVENS said that needs-based aid is inportant, and asked
Di ane Barrans for coment.

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director for the Al aska Commi ssion on
Post secondary Education, said that the bottom line of the issue
is affordability; in Al aska the percentage of inconme that goes
to education is too high and deters too many people from
attending college. The governor has a proposal in the budget

this year to increase needs-based aid that will bring Al aska to
t he nat i onal aver age in terns of comunity col | ege
affordability. The inmpact of this bill to lowincome famlies
would be huge; it wuld raise the aspirations of Al askan

students. There’'s a big personal and public benefit to higher
educati on.

9:01: 34 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if matching funds fromthe famly could be
proposed, including Permanent Fund D vi dend savi ngs.

M5. BARRANS said that in early outreach efforts ways of saving
for college are encouraged, including the Permnent Fund
Di vidend education savings fund, but many tinmes the noney is
just not avail able for education.

CHAIR STEVENS thanked the presenters, and, there being no
further business to cone before the conmmttee, adjourned the
meeting at 9:03: 38 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE -7- March 30, 2007



